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administrator of the estate of ROY ANTHONY SCOTT;

and FREDRICK WAID, as co-special administrator

of the estate of ROY ANTHONY SCOTT

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

FOR THE DISTRICT OF NEVADA (LAS VEGAS)

ROCHELLE SCOTT, individually, and as co-
special administrator of the estate of ROY
ANTHONY SCOTT; and FREDRICK WAID, as
co-special administrator of the estate of ROY
ANTHONY SCOTT,

Plaintiffs,
VS.
LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE
DEPARTMENT; KYLE SMITH, individually;
THEODORE HUNTSMAN, individually; and
DOES 1-10, inclusive,

Defendants.

Case No. 2:20-cv-1872
COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES

1. Unreasonable Search and Seizure —
Excessive Force — Violation of the Fourth
Amendment (42 U.S.C. §1983)

2. Unreasonable Search and Seizure —
Denial of Medical Care — Violation of the
Fourth Amendment (42 U.S.C. §1983)

3. Substantive Due Process (42 U.S.C.
81983) Violations of Fourteenth
Amendment — Deprivation of Familial
Relations

4. Municipal Liability for Unconstitutional
Custom or Policy (42 U.S.C. § 1983)

5. Disability Discrimination 8 504 of the

Rehabilitation Act of 1973,29 U.S.C. §

794(a), Title 11 of the Americans with

Disabilities Act, 42 U.S.C. 812131, et seq.

Municipal Liability—Failure to Train

(42 U.S.C. § 1983)

Municipal Liability-Ratification (42

U.S.C. 81983)

Battery (Wrongful Death)

Negligence (Wrongful Death)

©o N o

EXHIBIT “A,” Redacted Death Certificate
EXHIBIT “B,” Order Appointing Co-Special
Administrators

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL
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COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES

Plaintiff ROCHELLE SCOTT, individually and as co-special administrator of the estate of
ROY ANTHONY SCOTT and FREDRICK WAID, as co-special administrator of the estate of ROY
ANTHONY SCOTT, for their Complaint against Defendants KYLE SMITH, THEODORE
HUNTSMAN, LAS VEGAS POLICE DEPARTMENT (LVMPD) and DOES 1-10, inclusive, allege
as follows:

INTRODUCTION

1. This case involves the pressure positional asphyxiation death of ROY ANTHONY
SCOTT (“SCOTT” or “DECEDENT”), who was a 65-year-old African-American man who wighed
140 pounds at the time of his death and known to be suffering from paranoid schizophrenia — a
lifelong mental disability causing paranoid delusions, profound fear and anxiety, making him
extremely suspicious and apprehensive. On March 3, 2019, SCOTT died shortly after being
subjected to a pressure restraint while prone on the sidewalk and gravel area in front of his apartment
in the custody of two LVMPD OFFICERS (hereinafter “HUNTSMAN” and “SMITH”) one of
whom kneeled on SCOTT’S neck and back for over ninety (90) seconds as SCOTT cried and
pleaded to be placed in the patrol car. SCOTT said “please” sixty-three (63) times over eight (8)
minutes before becoming motionless, after which SCOTT never received chest compressions or
CPR of any kind until Medic-West Ambulance arrived approximately nine (9) minutes later.
SCOTT died on the ground, handcuffed, pleading with HUNTSMAN and SMITH for water and to
just take him into the patrol car.

2. This civil rights action seeks compensatory and punitive damages from Defendants
for violating various rights under the United States Constitution and state law in connection with the
death of ROY ANTHONY SCOTT. Plaintiff ROCHELLE ANTHONY SCOTT is DECEDENT’S
surviving daughter and sues in her individual capacity and as co-special administrator of
DECEDENT’S estate together with FREDRICK WAID.

PARTIES
3. At all relevant times, SCOTT was an individual residing in the County of Clark,

Nevada. At all relevant times, SCOTT suffered from and/or was diagnosed with mental and
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emotional impairments, including but not limited to, paranoid schizophrenia, making him a protected
individual under the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA).

4, SCOTT is survived by his daughter, Plaintiff ROCHELLE SCOTT, who is residing in
the County of San Bernardino, State of California. ROCHELLE SCOTT sues in her individual
capacity as surviving daughter of DECEDENT and seeks wrongful death damages under federal and
state law.

5. Plaintiff ROCHELLE SCOTT also files suit in her capacity as court-appointed co-
special administrator of DECEDENT’S estate. In this capacity, ROCHELLE SCOTT seeks all
permissible damages under Nev. Rev. Stat. 841.085.

6. Plaintiff FREDRICK WAID (“WAID”) is a resident of the State of Nevada, Las
Vegas. WAID sues in his capacity as court-appointed co-special administrator of the estate of ROY
ANTHONY SCOTT together with Plaintiff ROCHELLE SCOTT. ROCHELLE SCOTT and WAID
are hereinafter collectively referred to as “CO-SPECIAL ADMINISTRATORS.”

7. At all times relevant herein, Defendant LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE
DEPARTMENT (hereinafter “LVVMPD”) was, at all times mentioned, and is a political entity and
political subdivision of Clark County and the State of Nevada, formed and operating pursuant to the
Nevada Revised Statutes and, at all times relevant hereto, is the Police Department with jurisdiction
throughout Clark County, Nevada. LVMPD is a law enforcement agency entrusted to provide
thorough and accurate investigation, reporting, and police protection throughout the City of Las
Vegas, Nevada, and unincorporated Clark County, Nevada. LVMPD’s practices as demonstrated in
the bodycam footage in this case (and other cases including Brown v. Lotero) constitute de facto
policies of improperly arresting and restraining individuals including individuals with disabilities;
and in displaying deliberate indifference to the safety and serious medical needs of individuals with
disabilities. At all times relevant herein, LVMPD employed all Co-Defendants as yet unknown
POLICE OFFICER DOES 1-5, officers at the scene and DOES 6-10, supervisors, inclusive.

8. Defendants KYLE SMITH (“SMITH”) and THEODORE HUNTSMAN
(“HUNTSMAN?”) (hereinafter collectively “LVMPD Defendant(s)””) were at all times mentioned in
this complaint, LVMPD police officers employed by Defendant LVMPD. SMITH and
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HUNTSMAN were the arresting LVMPD officers on the date of DECEDENT’S death, March 3,
2019. SMITH and HUNTSMAN are sued in their individual capacities only.

0. At all relevant times, LVMPD was the employer of each of LVMPD Defendants who
were at all times herein mentioned LVMPD Police officers. Defendants DOES 1-5 were at all times
mentioned herein, LVMPD police officers; DOES 6-10 were managerial, supervisorial, and
policymaking employees of LVMPD.

10. At all relevant times, SMITH, HUNTSMAN and DOES 1-5 were duly authorized
employees and agents of LVMPD, who were acting under the color of law within the course and
scope of their respective duties as police officers and with the complete authority and ratification of
their principal, Defendant LVMPD.

11. At all relevant times, SMITH, HUNTSMAN, and DOES 1-10 were duly appointed
officers and/or employees or agents of LVMPD, subject to oversight and supervision by LVMPD’s
elected and non-elected officials.

12. In doing the acts, failing and omitting to act as hereinafter described, Defendants
SMITH, HUNTSMAN, and DOES 1-10 were acting with the implied and actual permission and
consent of LVMPD and its managerial employees.

13.  Atall times mentioned herein, each and every LVMPD Defendants were the agents of
each and every other LVMPD Defendant and had a legal duty to oversee and supervise the hiring,
conduct, and employment of each and every other LVMPD Defendant.

14. The true names of defendants DOES 1 through 10, inclusive, are unknown to
Plaintiffs, who therefore sue these defendants by such fictitious names. Plaintiffs are ignorant of the
true identities of Defendants, DOES 1-10, inclusive, and therefore sues them by such fictitious
names. The Plaintiffs allege that DOES 1-10 may be liable to Plaintiffs for the acts, omissions, and
damages alleged in this action. Plaintiffs will seek leave to amend this complaint to show their true
names and capacities when ascertained.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

15. This civil action is brought for the redress of alleged deprivations of constitutional

rights as protected by 42 U.S.C. 88 1983, 1985, 1986, 1988, and the Fourth and Fourteenth

4
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Amendments of the United States Constitution and 8504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29
U.S.C. § 794(a), Title Il of the Americans with Disabilities Act (“ADA”), 42 U.S.C. § 12131, et. seq.
Jurisdiction is founded on 28 U.S.C. 88 1331, 1343, and 1367 and other statutory provisions.
Plaintiffs further invoke the supplemental jurisdiction of this Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 8 1367 to
hear and decide claims arising under state laws.

16.  Venue is proper in this Court under 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b), because Defendants reside
in, and all incidents, events, and occurrences giving rise to this action occurred in, the County of
Clark County, Nevada.

FACTS COMMON TO ALL CLAIMS FOR RELIEF

17. Plaintiffs repeat and reallege each and every allegation of this Complaint set forth
hereinabove with the same force and effect as if fully set forth herein.

18. On March 3, 2019, SCOTT called 911 for assistance and reported suspicious persons
at or around his apartment, including, one he believed was armed with a saw.

19. SMITH and HUNTSMAN were LVMPD patrol officers who responded to SCOTT’s
911 call and arrived at SCOTT’S apartment at the 3600 block of EI Conlon Avenue at approximately
3:00 a.m. on March 3, 2019.

20. Upon their arrival, SMITH and HUNTSMAN did not observe any suspicious persons
or anyone armed with a saw at or around SCOTT’S apartment complex.

21. SMITH and/or HUNTSMAN knocked on the door of SCOTT’s apartment on the
second floor of the complex. HUNTSMAN and/or SMITH attempted to speak with ROY SCOTT
through the door of his apartment. SCOTT did not come outside. During this time, HUNTSMAN
and/or SMITH asked SCOTT, “have you been diagnosed with any mental diseases?” Meanwhile,
SMITH or HUNTSMAN made a call on his radio requesting that a call be made to SCOTT as he
was not coming out of his apartment. HUNTSMAN and/or SMITH are heard calling a sergeant who
is heard telling them that it is not an urgent matter and to leave. Nevertheless, SMITH and
HUNTSMAN used their flashlights to point them into SCOTT’s window from the ground floor

waving them rapidly in an effort to make SCOTT open his door.
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22. A short time thereafter, SCOTT emerged from his apartment and started to slowly
descend the stairs from his second-floor apartment to the ground floor where the LVMPD Defendant
officers were standing. SCOTT had his cell phone in his hand.

23. Upon doing so, HUNTSMAN and/or SMITH pulled a gun on SCOTT, they each
pointed both a gun and a flashlight directly at SCOTT, and told him to “put that down” as SCOTT
descended the stairs slowly, he asked, “what am | supposed to do?” HUNTSMAN or SMITH told
SCOTT, “I ain’t fucking with you put that down” referring to a pipe that SCOTT had already
dropped or his cell phone.

24. HUNTSMAN or SMITH pointed the flashlight and gun directly at SCOTT to
intimidate and scare SCOTT as he emerged from his apartment and started to come down the stairs
to speak with the officers peacefully.

25. Plaintiffs allege on information and belief that LVMPD Defendants were aware of
prior radio calls to SCOTT’S apartment and were aware that SCOTT had been peacefully taken into
custody for legal 2000 holds before and that he suffered from a mental illness.

26. When SCOTT reached the ground floor, Officers SMITH or HUNTSMAN continued
to point his flashlight at SCOTT and directed SCOTT into a position with his back against a wall,
near a corner, underneath another stairwell in the apartment complex. The LVMPD Defendant
officer no longer using a flashlight asked SCOTT, if he had any weapons on him. With his back still
against the wall by a corner and flashlight on his face, SCOTT slowly reached into his pocket and
handed the requesting LVMPD Defendant officer a kitchen knife, who took possession of the knife.

27. As one LVMPD Defendant officer continued to shine the flashlight at SCOTT, both
LVMPD Defendants told SCOTT to “turn around,” whereupon SCOTT told them, “I am paranoid
schizophrenic,” he asked LVMPD Defendants twice, as calmly as he could if they “could (you) just
put (me) in the car please.” SCOTT complained about “shining the light in my face.” SMITH or
HUNTSMAN continued to ask SCOTT to “turn around,” and they would “take the light off” if he
turned around. SCOTT told SMITH or HUNTSMAN, “I am paranoid, | can’t turn around.” SCOTT

continued to tell them, “I am paranoid.”
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28.  With his back still against the wall by a corner, SCOTT continued to tell SMITH and
HUNTSMAN he is “paranoid,” one of whom insisted to SCOTT, “you are fine,” SCOTT replied,
without yelling, “I’m not fine ... I’m not fine.” SCOTT told SMITH and HUNTSMAN he did not
have any other weapons, but SMITH and HUNTSMAN said he did not believe SCOTT.

29. SMITH and/or HUNTSMAN approached SCOTT. SCOTT held out his arms and
stood still. SMITH or HUNTSMAN took hold of one of SCOTT’s arms, then both SMITH and
HUNTSMAN approached him and started to push SCOTT away from the wall, with either SMITH
or HUNTSMAN taking hold of his other arm to place both SCOTT’S arms behind his back in an
effort to handcuff him, whereupon SCOTT started to beg and plead with SMITH and HUNTSMAN

and stated as follows (verbatim from in the bodycam):

“Please sir, please, please sir, please, sir please...why...why are all you
doing this?...why are you doing this ...What ... what are you doing?
Sir, what are you doing? Please...please sir, what are you
doing...please, sir, no, stop it please, stop it please, please sir, please
sir, please sir, please, no sir, please, don’t please, please sir, please,
please, leave me alone sir, leave me alone, leave me alone, leave me
alone, leave me alone, no, leave me alone, please sir, leave me alone,
leave me alone sir, please let me go home, leave me alone, please,
please sir, leave me alone, please, please sir, why are you all doing this
to me, why are you doing this to me, why are you doing this to me,
please sir, please sir, please, please don’t, please leave me alone sir,
please leave me alone, please, please sir leave me alone, leave me
alone, please sir, please leave me alone, sir please leave me alone,
please sir, will you please leave me alone, please, please, please sir,
please leave me alone, please, leave me alone sir, please sir, please,
leave me alone, sir please, please sir, leave me alone, sir please, leave
me alone, please sir, why are you doing this, please, why are you
doing this, please, why are you doing this to me, please sir, please sir,
please leave me alone, please, stop!, please leave me alone, sir, please
sir, please sir, please officer, please leave me alone, sir please, sir
please, please, sir, please, leave me alone, leave me alone, sir, no...

30.  Within about fifteen (15) seconds from the start of SMITH’s and HUNTSMAN’s
efforts to handcuff him, SCOTT fell to the ground and for at least eight (8) minutes thereafter,
begged and pleaded with SMITH and HUNTSMAN, saying “please” to the officers’ sixty-three (63)
times, before SCOTT became still and silent at 12:50 in the 21:57 video/audio tape. The timeline as

depicted in bodycam number five shows the following:
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31.

7 minutes we see the knee in the back of SCOTT’S neck and back;

835 The Officer removes his knee on his back. Therefore 1 minute 35 seconds on
SCOTT’S back and neck SCOTT is prone on his stomach;

11 minutes we see that SCOTT’S feet are not moving, but are slightly
involuntarily shaking as if he's having some kind of seizure.

1138 SCOTT asks for water and again at 1150

1250 SCOTT’S feet are not moving

13 minutes SCOTT appears dead

14 minutes SCOTT appears dead, but one officer says he's still breathing.

15 minutes one officer says he's barely breathing.

1511 one officer checks pulse and says expedite medical (now that SCOTT is
unconscious)

1541 one officer states he's fine. They move him to his side.

1611 one officer says wake up now (This is about 3:46 AM and it appears that s
SCOTT is dead);

No Officer ever attempts any CPR.

1840. Another officer arrives first officers mention a pipe and a knife.

2145 Officer says no pulse.

21 minutes officer says he's 421A with a mental diagnosis uses drugs.

Shortly after AMR arrives and transports SCOTT,

2157 AMR doing chest compressions inside the ambulance.

As SCOTT laid on the pavement, SMITH and HUNTSMAN physically struggled

with SCOTT, and one of the two (either SMITH or HUNTSMAN), put his full body weight upon
SCOTT and placed his knee on SCOTT’s neck and back, while SCOTT laid face down on the
ground in a prone position with hands behind his back, for at least one minute and thirty-five (35)

seconds. This still photo from the body cam shows the knee of one officer on SCOTT’S back.

2019-03-03 T11:38:

This still photograph from the body cam shows SCOTT in a prone position with

HUNTSMAN or SMITH in the process of putting pressure and full weight to his back and neck.

8
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2019-03-03 T11:40:092 ‘\
AXON FLEX 2 X83027717 24

32.  After either HUNTSMAN or SMITH removes his knee from SCOTT’S neck and
back, HUNTSMAN and SMITH roll SCOTT onto his side. For about two and a half minutes
thereafter, SCOTT flayed his legs and moaned. Thereafter, the same officer who had his knee on
SCOTT’s neck and back asked a witness nearby to run up to SCOTT’s apartment to “see if there was
an ID or something in there."

33. During the entirety of the physical struggle and thereafter, despite SCOTT’S multiple
requests for assistance and aid, neither SMITH nor HUNTSMAN rendered medical aid or assistance
to SCOTT.

34, Before becoming still and silent, a hand-cuffed SCOTT’S last words were to request
water. Immediately after asking for water, SCOTT’S feet and hands started to involuntarily twitch.
A neighbor of SCOTT, who witnessed part of the physical struggle, told HUNTSMAN and SMITH
he could get water, to which either HUNTSMAN or SMITH responded “no” they would “wait for
medical.”

35.  Within thirty (30) seconds of asking for water, SCOTT became still and silent,
handcuffed, immobile, on the pavement, lying on his side and silent, either SMITH or HUNTSMAN
tapped SCOTT on the shoulder and asked if he was “all right.” SCOTT did not move or make a

sound.
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36. Either HUNTSMAN or SMITH told the other officer that SCOTT is “still breathing
but 1 don’t know why he is doing what he is doing...he must have had a medical episode or
something.” SCOTT had not moved or made any sound. Either HUNTSMAN or SMITH stooped
down to have a closer look at SCOTT, and checked his pulse, lifted his shirt, and declared “he is
breathing, just barely,” then walked away.

37. HUNTSMAN or SMITH tapped SCOTT on the shoulder again trying to arouse him.
SCOTT did not move or make any sound. HUNTSMAN or SMITH said out loud, “he is fine,” then
immediately used his radio to call in a “possible ED” (excited delirium) and that SCOTT was
“currently in a recovery position on the left side.” SCOTT still did not move or make any sound.
HUNTSMAN or SMITH repeatedly tried to arouse SCOTT. SCOTT did not move or make any
sound. HUNTSMAN or SMITH returned again and tried to arouse SCOTT. HUNTSMAN or
SMITH placed a “call (to) sarg.” HUNTSMAN or SMITH is heard talking to his radio and said
SCOTT’S “breathing is super faint” and maybe “an ED” and that he is “starting to slow down his
breathing.” During this time, HUNTSMAN or SMITH continued to look at SCOTT on the ground
but did not render any medical aid or CPR.

38.  Two more LVMPD officers, DOES 1 and 2, arrived at the scene and SCOTT had still
not moved or said anything. None of the four LVMPD officers provided any medical assistance,
CPR, or aid to SCOTT.

39. Either HUNTSMAN or SMITH told the two other LVMPD officers, DOES 1 or 2,
that there were two weapons “over there,” a kitchen knife and a pipe, pointing to an area behind a
wall near a plant which was some distance away from where they had cornered SCOTT. When
DOE 1 or DOE 2 asked either HUNTSMAN or SMITH if SCOTT came out and then “threw the
knife” on the side of the wall where that officer was standing, either HUNTSMAN or SMITH
replied, “Yeah, he came out and had a pipe and | pulled my gun on him and he dropped the pipe on
the stairwell and then we got him over here and he backed himself against the wall and he was
standing there not doing anything, told him if he had any other weapons and started to pat him down
and goes to his pocket and pulls out a knife.” He did not disclose to DOE 1 or DOE 2 that SCOTT

gave him the kitchen knife before the pat down.

10
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40. None to the LVMPD Defendants found other weapons on SCOTT other than the pipe
he dropped or the kitchen knife he gave them.

41. Prior to the arrival of paramedics and after SCOTT became still and silent, SCOTT’s
hands and feet visibly twitched involuntarily while SMITH and HUNTSMAN stood by without
rendering any aid. Neither SMITH nor HUNTSMAN or any other responding LVMPD officer
rendered CPR or other medical assistance to SCOTT at any time.

42.  SCOTT was lying still on his side, silent on the sidewalk, handcuffed for at least
another nine (9) minutes before paramedics arrived. During these nine (9) minutes, HUNTSMAN
and SMITH stood around SCOTT’s body, alternately touched SCOTT’s body, swept coins that fell
out of SCOTT’s pocket with their feet, checked his pulse, wandered around, returned to check on
SCOTT and claimed SCOTT was “still breathing,” or “light breathing,” or “super-faint breathing,”
or possible “ED,” but did not render aid, CPR or any medical assistance to SCOTT. SMITH and/or
HUNTSMAN tried to arouse SCOTT by calling his name several times and to “wake up.” SCOTT
did not move or make any sound.

43. Upon information and belief, by the time paramedics arrived on the scene, SCOTT
was deceased, his body limp and non-responsive.

44, Upon information and belief, SCOTT died on the sidewalk pavement in front of his
apartment, at least nine (9) minutes before paramedics arrived with neither SMITH nor
HUNTSMAN or any LVMPD officer including DOE 1 AND 2 rendering any medical aid to SCOTT
whatsoever.

45, Either HUNTSMAN or SMITH told paramedics that SCOTT was a possible “ED.”
Later, in news reports, LVMPD stated that SMITH and HUNTSMAN suspected DECEDENT
experienced “excited delirium” — which is not a recognized condition by the DSM-1V and LVMPD
knew that SMITH and HUNTSMAN had little if any medical training.

46.  When arriving paramedics asked how long SCOTT had been unresponsive, either
HUNTSMAN or SMITH replied: “probably about 8 minutes.”

47. Paramedics attempted to perform CPR on SCOTT once they had SCOTT in the back

of the ambulance but were not able to revive him.

11
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48. Neither SMITH, HUNTSMAN, any other responding LVMPD officer, or other third
party suffered any notable injuries of any kind.

49. Neither SMITH, HUNTSMAN, any other responding LVMPD officer required any
medical attention or hospitalization as they were not injured.

50. SMITH and/or HUNTSMAN used unreasonable and/or deadly force against
DECEDENT by physically struggling with DECEDENT in order to restrain him, failing to
accommodate DECEDENT’S disability, taking actions which aggravated his paranoia, failing to de-
escalate the situation, physically wrestling with DECEDENT on the ground and placing his weight
on SCOTT for at least one minute and 35 seconds of this time either SMITH or HUNTSMAN
kneeling with his weight on DECEDENT’s neck and back, and failed to provide any assistance for
nine (9) minutes between the time SCOTT stopped moving until the time paramedics arrived at the
scene.

51.  SMITH and/or HUNTSMAN used unreasonable and ultimately deadly force against
DECEDENT, an individual with a known disability, handcuffed DECEDENT, physically struggled
with DECEDENT, failed to reasonably accommodate his disability and/or, upon information and
belief, took actions and/or inactions which proximately led to DECEDENT’S death.

52. At the time of the use of force against DECEDENT, including deadly force, LVMPD,
SMITH, and HUNTSMAN knew DECEDENT suffered from mental, psychiatric and/or emotional
disabilities.

53.  Atthe time of the use of force, including deadly force, DECEDENT did not otherwise
pose an imminent threat of death or serious physical injury to either himself, SMITH, HUNTSMAN
and/or DOES 1-5 or any other person.

54.  As a result of the foregoing, DECEDENT suffered intense physical and emotional
pain, anguish, distress and despair, and death, including the loss of enjoyment of his life.

55. Defendants SMITH, HUNTSMAN and DOES 1-5 officers are responsible for the
DECEDENT’s injuries and death either because they were personally involved, because they were
integral participants and/or because they failed to intervene.

I

12
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FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF
UNREASONABLE SEARCH AND SEIZURE —VIOLATION OF FOURTH AMENDMENT-
EXCESSIVE FORCE-WRONGFUL DEATH (42 U.S.C. § 1983)
(CO-SPECIAL ADMINISTRATORS ROCHELLE SCOTT AND FRED WAID v. SMITH,
HUNTSMAN and DOES 1-5)

56. Plaintiffs repeat and re-allege each and every allegation hereinabove of this
Complaint with the same force and effect as if fully set forth herein.

57. DECEDENT had no arrest warrants outstanding.

58. DECEDENT did not commit a crime in the presence of SMITH or HUNTSMAN.

59. DECEDENT did not lunge at or attempt to attack, harm, or strike SMITH,
HUNTSMAN, or any person with or without a weapon.

60. DECEDENT did not verbalize any threat to harm himself to SMITH, HUNTSMAN
DOES 1 and 2, or any other person.

61. Defendant SMITH or HUNTSMAN unreasonably and forcibly physically restrained
and struggled with DECEDENT, ignored DECEDENT’S pleas, and knelt on DECEDENT’s neck
and back for at least one minute and thirty-five (35) seconds.

62.  The unjustified use of excessive force, including deadly force, against DECEDENT
by SMITH and HUNTSMAN, deprived DECEDENT of his right to be secure in his person against
unreasonable searches and seizures as guaranteed to DECEDENT under the Fourth Amendment to
the United States Constitution and applied to state actors by the Fourteenth Amendment.

63.  The unreasonable use of force, including deadly force, by Defendants SMITH,
HUNTSMAN, and DOES 1-5, deprived the DECEDENT of his right to be secure in his person
against unreasonable searches and seizures as guaranteed to DECEDENT under the Fourth
Amendment to the United States Constitution and applied to state actors by the Fourteenth
Amendment.

64.  As aresult of SMITH and HUNTSMAN’S acts and inactions, DECEDENT suffered
extreme pain and suffering and suffered a loss of life and of earning capacity.

65. Plaintiffs, as CO-SPECIAL ADMINISTRATORS of DECEDENT’s estate claims,

inter alia, funeral, and burial expenses and punitive damages for DECEDENT.
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66.  As aresult of their conduct and inactions herein, SMITH and HUNTSMAN are liable
for DECEDENT’s injuries, as well as DOES 1-5, who were integral participants in the excessive
force, or because they failed to intervene to prevent these violations.

67. This use of deadly force was excessive and unreasonable under the circumstances,
especially since DECEDENT posed no imminent threat of death or serious physical injury to either
SMITH or HUNTSMAN any other person. Defendants’ actions thus deprived DECEDENT of his
right to be free from unreasonable searches and seizures under the Fourth Amendment and applied to
state actors by the Fourteenth Amendment.

68.  The conduct of SMITH, HUNTSMAN, and DOES 1-5 were willful, wanton,
malicious, and done with reckless disregard for the rights and safety of DECEDENT and therefore
warrants the imposition of exemplary and punitive damages as to Defendants SMITH,
HUNTSMAN, and DOES 1-5.

69. Plaintiffs, as CO-SPECIAL ADMINISTRATORS of DECEDENT’S estate, seek all
permissible damages under Nev. Rev. Stat. § 41.100 and the Fourth Amendment to the U.S.
Constitution.

70.  Plaintiffs, as CO-SPECIAL ADMINISTRATORS of DECEDENT’S estate also seek

attorney’s fees and costs under this claim.

SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF
UNREASONABLE SEARCH AND SEIZURE -
DENIAL OF MEDICAL CARE — VIOLATION OF THE FOURTH AMENDMENT
(42 U.S.C. §1983)
(CO-SPECIAL ADMINISTRATORS ROCHELLE SCOTT AND FRED WAID v.
DEFENDANTS HUNTSMAN, SMITH, AND DOES 1-5)

71. Plaintiffs repeat and reallege each and every allegation hereinabove of this Complaint
with the same force and effect as if fully set forth herein.

72. Pursuant to the Fourth Amendment to the United States Constitution, all law
enforcement officers have a duty to provide medical care to persons who are injured while being
apprehended and taken into custody and/or to timely summons medical care for these individuals.

This includes the duty to either administer medical care or ensure that medical care is promptly
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provided. This also encompasses the requirement that peace officers may not delay an arrestee
access to medical care without reason.

73. DECEDENT was subjected to unreasonable and excessive force in restraint. Despite
his pleading, Defendants SMITH, HUNTSMAN, and DOES 1-5 failed to provide and unreasonably
delayed medical care to DECEDENT. DECEDENT eventually died from the injuries HUNTSMAN,
SMITH, and DOES 1-5 caused. Plaintiffs are informed and thereon believe that DECEDENT
suffered great physical and emotional pain while he lay unattended to on the ground in the process of
slowly dying, until he died. Plaintiffs are further informed and thereon believe that the delay and or
denial of medical care to DECEDENT contributed to DECEDENT’s pain and suffering and
contributed to the worsening of his injuries, including his cause of death.

74.  As aresult of the conduct of HUNTSMAN, SMITH, and DOES 1-5, they are liable
for DECEDENT’s injuries because they were either integral participants to the violations of
DECEDENT s rights or they failed to intervene to prevent these violations.

75.  The conduct of HUNTSMAN, SMITH, and DOES 1-5 was malicious, oppressive,
and in reckless disregard for the rights and safety of DECEDENT and warrants the imposition of
exemplary and punitive damages as to HUNTSMAN, SMITH and DOES 1-5.

76. PLAINTIFFS ROCHELLE SCOTT and WAID as the appointed CO-SPECIAL
ADMINISTRATORS of DECEDENT’S ESTATE, bring this claim, and seek both survival and
wrongful death damages for the violation of DECEDENT’s rights.

77. Plaintiffs also seek attorneys’ fees pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1988 and costs of suit.

THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF
SUBSTANTIVE DUE PROCESS (42 U.S.C. § 1983)
VIOLATION OF FOURTEENTH AMENDMENT -

DEPRIVATION OF FAMILIAL RELATIONS
(PLAINTIFF ROCHELLE SCOTT v. DEFENDANTS SMITH,
HUNTSMAN and DOES 1-5)

78. Plaintiffs repeat and re-allege each and every allegation set forth hereinabove of this
Complaint with the same force and effect as if fully set forth herein.
79. DECEDENT’S surviving daughter, ROCHELLE SCOTT, individually, has a

cognizable interest under the Due Process Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment of the United States
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Constitution to be free from state actions that deprive of life, liberty, or property in such a manner as
to shock the conscience, including but not limited to, unwarranted state interference in Plaintiff’s
familial relationship with her father, DECEDENT.

80.  The Substantive Due Process Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment to the United
States Constitution guarantees all persons the right to be free from unlawful state interference with
their familial relations. 42 U.S.C. § 1983 provides a private right of action for conduct which
violates this right.

81. The United States Constitution protects all persons from interference with
relationships such as those that attend the creation and sustenance of a family and similar highly
personal relationships. Specifically, the right to be free from unlawful state interference with the
familial relationship enjoyed between parents and children is a protected liberty interest rooted in the
due process clause of the Fourteenth Amendment.

82.  As a result of the excessive force by SMITH and HUNTSMAN and failure of said
other LVMPD Defendants to intervene, DECEDENT died. The use of deadly force by
HUNTSMAN, SMITH, DOES 1-5 under these circumstances was unreasonable, excessive, and
shocks the conscience. Further, HUNTSMAN, SMITH, and DOES 1-5 exhibited deliberate
indifference to and reckless disregard for DECEDENT’s and Plaintiff ROCHELLE SCOTT’S rights
and displayed a purpose to harm DECEDENT unrelated to a legitimate law enforcement objective.
In doing so, the conduct of HUNTSMAN, SMITH, and DOES 1-5 constitutes a violation of Plaintiff
ROCHELLE SCOTT’S Fourteenth Amendment Substantive Due Process right to free from unlawful
state interference with their familial relationship with her father.

83.  As a result of the conduct of HUNTSMAN, SMITH and DOES 1-5, they are liable
for DECEDENT’s injuries because they were either integral participants to the violations of
DECEDENT s rights or they failed to intervene to prevent these violations.

84.  The conduct of HUNTSMAN, SMITH and DOES 1-5 was malicious, oppressive, and
in reckless disregard for the rights and safety of DECEDENT and Plaintiff ROCHELLE SCOTT and

warrants the imposition of exemplary and punitive damages as to the individual Defendants.
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85.  As a direct result of the death of DECEDENT, Plaintiff ROCHELLE SCOTT has
suffered the loss of DECEDENT’s love, care, comfort, society, companionship, assistance,
protection, affection, moral support, financial support, and loss of services of DECEDENT. Plaintiff
seeks wrongful death damages under this claim.

86. Plaintiff also seeks attorneys’ fees pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1988 and costs of suit.

FOURTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
MUNICIPAL LIABILITY FOR UNCONSTITUTIONAL CUSTOM OR POLICY
(42 U.S.C. § 1983)

(ALL PLAINTIFFS v. LVMPD and DOES 6-10)

87. Plaintiffs repeat and re-allege each and every allegation as set forth hereinabove of
this Complaint with the same force and effect as if fully set forth herein.

88. On and for some time prior to March 3, 2019 (and continuing to the present date),
Defendants LVMPD, and DOES 6-10, deprived Plaintiffs of the rights and liberties secured by the
Fourteenth  Amendment to the United States Constitution in that said Defendants and their
supervising and managerial employees, agents, and representatives, acting with gross negligence and
with reckless and deliberate indifference to the rights and liberties of the public in general, and of
Plaintiffs, and of persons in their class, situation and comparable position in particular, knowingly

maintained, enforced and applied an official recognized custom, policy, and practice of:

@) Employing and retaining as police officers and other personnel, including,
SMITH and HUNTSMAN, DOES 1-5, who Defendants, DOES 6-10, at all
times material herein knew or reasonably should have known had dangerous
propensities for abusing their authority and for mistreating citizens by failing
to follow written LVMPD’s policies, including the use of excessive and
deadly force;

(b) Of inadequately supervising, training, controlling, assigning, and disciplining
LVMPD Police officers, and other personnel, including SMITH and
HUNTSMAN, DOES 1-5, whom Defendants LVMPD knew or in the exercise
of reasonable care should have known had the aforementioned propensities
and character traits, including the propensity for violence and the use of
excessive force, including deadly force;

(c) By maintaining grossly inadequate procedures for reporting, supervising,
investigating, reviewing, disciplining and controlling the intentional
misconduct by Defendants SMITH and HUNTSMAN, DOES 1-5, who are
Police officers of LVMPD;

(d) By failing to discipline the LVMPD Defendant Police officers’ conduct,
including but not limited to, unlawful detention and excessive force;
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()

()

(9)

(h)

(i)
)
(k)
0]
(m)

(n)

(0)

(P)

(@)

(n)

(s)
(t)

By ratifying the intentional misconduct of Defendants, SMITH, HUNTSMAN
police officers involved in unreasonable use of excessive force in restraining
persons with disabilities and are Police officers employed by Defendant
LVMPD;

By having and maintaining an unconstitutional policy, custom, and practice of
detaining and arresting individuals with disabilities, without probable cause or
reasonable suspicion, and using excessive force, including deadly force, which
also is demonstrated by inadequate training regarding these subjects. The
policies, customs, and practices of DOES 6-10 were done with deliberate
indifference to individuals’ safety and rights;

By failing to properly investigate claims of excessive force by LVMPD Police
officers;

By failing to institute appropriate policies regarding constitutional procedures
and practices for use of force, including the use of less than lethal force;

By failing to train officers regarding Fourth Amendment rights of citizens;
By failing to train officers on the proper use of deadly force;

By using excessive force against persons and condoning the use of excessive
force, and conspiring to cover-up civil rights violations;

By inadequate training of its officers and other LVMPD employees, including
SMITH, HUNTSMAN and DOES 1-10, on the aforementioned issues,
including use of deadly force;

By failing to properly train its officers on how to react when they encounter an
individual with mental and/or emotional disabilities;

By failing to conduct a prompt and thorough investigation into the conduct of
Defendants SMITH, HUNTSMAN, and DOES 1-5, and investigation into the
circumstances and events surrounding Decedent’s death at the hands of
SMITH, HUNTSMAN, and DOES 1-5.

By failing to train officers on how to assess the need for deadly force. To
restrain a person who has mental disabilities, failing to deescalate, without
assessing the need for continued deadly force shows that LVMPD’S training
of SMITH and HUNTSMAN with respect to assessing the need for deadly
force is grossly deficient.

By failing to train officers with respect to crisis intervention and mental health
disorders.

By failing to train officers on not placing vulnerable and compromised
individuals on their stomach in a prone position and using their body weight
to kneel on such persons affecting their ability to breathe.

By failing to train officers on when and how to administer CPR.

By failing to train officers on how to recognize signs of hypoxia.

By failing to train officers on crisis intervention and de-escalation techniques.
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89. By reason of the aforementioned policies and practices of LVMPD and DOES 6-10,
DECEDENT and Plaintiff ROCHELLE SCOTT, were subjected to pain and suffering and loss of
life.

90. Defendants DOES 6-10, together with various other officials, whether named or
unnamed, had either actual or constructive knowledge of the deficient policies, practices, and
customs alleged in the paragraphs above. Despite having knowledge as stated above, these
Defendants condoned, tolerated, and through actions and inactions thereby ratified such policies.
Said Defendants also acted with deliberate indifference to the foreseeable effects and consequences
of these policies with respect to the constitutional rights of Plaintiffs and other individuals similarly
situated.

91. By perpetrating, sanctioning, tolerating, and ratifying the outrageous conduct and
other wrongful acts of all Defendants LVMPD and DOES 6-10, acted with an intentional, reckless,
and callous disregard for the life of DECEDENT and Plaintiff’s constitutional rights. Defendants
LVMPD and DOES 6-10, each of their actions were willful, wanton, oppressive, malicious,
fraudulent, and extremely offensive and unconscionable to any person of normal sensibilities.

92. Furthermore, the policies, practices, and customs implemented and maintained and
still tolerated by all Defendants, were affirmatively linked to and were a significantly influential
force behind the injuries of Plaintiff.

93. By reason of the aforementioned acts and omissions of all Defendants, Plaintiff
ROCHELLE SCOTT, in her individual capacity as surviving daughter of DECEDENT, has suffered
loss of love, companionship, affection, comfort, care, and society and is entitled to damages.
Plaintiff seeks all permissible wrongful death damages under Nev. Rev. Stat. 841.085, and the
Fourth Amendment to the U.S. Constitution including, but not limited to, damages for her grief,
sorrow, loss of probable support, companionship, society, comfort and consortium, and damages for
pain, suffering of the DECEDENT, and penalties, including, but not limited to, exemplary and
punitive damages.

94.  Accordingly, Defendants are liable to Plaintiffs for compensatory damages under 42

U.S.C. § 1983.
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95.  As SPECIAL CO-ADMINISTRATOR of Decedent’s estate, the Plaintiffs seek all
permissible damages under Nev. Rev. Stat. 841.100.

96. Plaintiffs also seek attorney’s fees and costs under this claim.

97. Plaintiffs seek punitive damages against individual supervisory police officer

Defendants.

FIFTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
DISABILITY DISCRIMINATION
8§ 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 U.S.C. 8 794(a), Title 11 of the Americans with
Disabilities Act, 42 U.S.C. § 12131, et. seq.
(CO-SPECIAL ADMINISTRATORS v. ALL DEFENDANTYS)

98. Plaintiffs incorporate all foregoing allegations as if fully set forth herein.

99. DECEDENT suffered from a psychiatric disability, paranoid schitzophrenia.

100. Upon information and belief, Defendants SMITH and HUNTSMAN knew or should
have known that DECEDENT suffered from a psychiatric disability based on his behavior.

101. Defendants SMITH and HUNTSMAN had an obligation under the Americans with
Disabilities Act and the Rehabilitation Act(ADA)to accomodate DECEDENT’S Disability when
attempting to effectuate his detention.

102. Upon information and belief Defendants SMITH and HUNTSMAN did not modify
their tactics to account for DECEDENT’S disability and in doing so both failed to reasonably
accommodate his disability and discriminated against him based on his disability.

103.  Upon information and belief, LVMPD does not instruct their officers to modify their
tactics to effectuate arrest that reasonably accomodates disabilities when dealing with individuals
with psychiatric disabilities and by failing to do so discriminated against DECEDENT based on his
disability.

104. The ADA was enacted “to provide a clear and comprehensive national mandate for
the elimination of discrimination against individuals with disabilities” and “to provide clear, strong,
consistent, enforceable standards addressing discrimination against individuals with disabilities.” 42
U.S.C. § 12101(b)(1) & (2).

105. Title Il of the ADA provides: No qualified individual with a disability shall, by

reason of such disability, be excluded from participation in or be denied the benefits of the services,
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programs, or activities of a public entity, or be subjected to discrimination by any such entity. Id. §
12132. Discrimination includes a failure to reasonably accommodate a person's disability. To be a
qualified individual with a disability, a person must suffer from a physical or mental impairment that
substantially limits that person’s ability to perform a major life activity — an activity that the
average person in the general population can perform.

106. Title Il of the ADA includes an affirmative obligation that public entities must make
accommodations for people with disabilities.

107. Title Il of the ADA mandates a public entity may be liable for damages under Title 11
of the ADA if it intentionally or with deliberate indifference fails to provide a reasonable
accommodation to a disabled person. The failure to provide reasonable accommodation constitutes
discrimination against the disabled person. A public entity may not disregard the plight and distress
of a disabled person by failing to accommodate his or her needs.

108. Title 1l of the ADA mandates that once an entity is on notice of the need for
accommodation, it is required to undertake a fact-specific investigation to determine what constitutes
a reasonable accommodation.

109. Title 1l of the ADA applies to LVMPD because it is a public entity.

110. Title Il of the ADA applies to police departments.

111. LVMPD receives federal funding to provide a reasonable accommodation to a
disabled persons.

112. Title 1l of the ADA requires LVMPD to train its officers in how to deal with
physically and mentally disabled individuals.

113. Title 1l of the ADA mandates that government agencies, including police officers,
must take a disabled person’s disability into account by making reasonable modifications of policies
and practices where needed to avoid discrimination. 42 U.S.C. Section 12132, 28 C.F.R. Section
35.130(b)(7).

114. SCOTT’S form of mental illness is a recognized impairment for purposes of the ADA

and NRS 433A.115.
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115. SCOTT was disabled under the ADA because his mental illness substantially limited
his ability to communicate, to interact with others, and to care for himself.

116. Defendants SMITH and HUNTSMAN knew or should have known SCOTT was
experiencing a severe mental health crisis. SMITH and HUNTSMAN should have known how to
accommodate his mental illness by employing de-escalation strategies with the intent of achieving a
safe and nonviolent self-surrender. Yet despite this knowledge, and the national mandate to
accommodate the disabled, SMITH and HUNTSMAN chose to not to accommodate SCOTT’s
impairment and chose to apply tactics that made a safe and nonviolent self-surrender impossible.

117. Defendants SMITH and HUNTSMAN utilized techniques nationally understood to
exacerbate and intensify stress and apprehension in the mentally ill. Such practices have long been
rejected by police departments when interacting with persons suffering mental impairment. Such
practices render it impossible for mentally ill persons to understand and/or to comply with directives
and commands and are guaranteed to make a safe and peaceful self-surrender impossible.

118. Defendants SMITH and HUNTSMAN could have reasonably accommodated SCOTT
by engaging in non-threatening communications, respecting his comfort zone, waiting for the arrival
of medical assistance and using the passage of time to defuse the situation peacefully rather than
encouraging a deadly confrontation.

119. Defendants SMITH and HUNTSMAN had the time, safety and opportunity to assess
the situation and administer a strategy to appropriately accommodate SCOTT because he was not
armed with a deadly weapon, and SCOTT wanted to be taken to a facility for evaluation and
treatment as a Legal 2000 detainee.

120. At all times during Defendants SMITH and HUNTSMAN’s interactions with
SCOTT, accommodation was achievable. Even when an emotionally disturbed individual is asking
not to be handcuffed on the ground with the full body weight of male officer on his back when it
would be easy to accommodate such a request without endangering the officers’ lives. SCOTT was a

mentally ill person whose needs required accommodation for his disability.
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121. At all times during Defendants SMITH and HUNTSMAN'’s interactions with
SCOTT, they knew or should have known that because of his impairment, they were required to
exert greater effort and caution to take control of the situation through less intrusive means.

122. By failing to accommodate SCOTT’s mental health disability, Defendants acted with
discriminatory intent and deliberate indifference to his federally protected rights.

123. The conduct alleged herein was done in reckless disregard of SCOTT’s
constitutionally protected rights; justifying an award of punitive damages as against the individually
named Defendants.

124. By reason of the aforementioned acts and omissions, Plaintiffs were caused to incur
funeral and related cremation expenses.

125. By reason of the aforementioned acts and omissions of Defendants and each of them,
Plaintiffs have suffered loss of love, companionship, affection, comfort, care, and society.

126.  Accordingly, Defendants and each of them are liable to Plaintiffs for compensatory
damages in an amount according to proof at trial.

127. Plaintiffs seek wrongful death and survival damages under this claim.

128. Plaintiffs also seek statutory attorney fees under this claim.

129. Defendants LVMPD are vicariously liable to Plaintiffs for damages for the foregoing
acts of SMITH and HUNTSMAN and the emotional distress negligently inflicted by Defendants
SMITH and HUNTSMAN upon Plaintiffs because they were acting under color of law, employed by
LVMPD and within the course and scope of their employment as police officers for the L\VMPD.

130. As a direct and proximate result of Defendants’ conduct as alleged above, Plaintiffs
suffered extreme and severe mental, emotional anguish, distress, and pain and have been injured in
mind and body.

131. Plaintiffs have been deprived of the life-long love, companionship, comfort, support,
society, care, and sustenance of DECEDENT and will continue to be so deprived for the remainder
of their natural lives.

132. Plaintiffs are therefore entitled to damages for their mental and/or emotional distress

as a result of the conduct of SMITH and HUNTSMAN above mentioned.
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133. Plaintiffs also seek attorney’s fees and costs.

SIXTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
MUNICIPAL LIABILITY - FAILURE TO TRAIN (42 U.S.C. § 1983)
(PLAINTIFFS v. DEFENDANTS LVMPD and DOES 6-10)

134. Plaintiffs repeat and re-allege each and every allegation in paragraphs hereinabove of
this Complaint with the same force and effect as if fully set forth herein.

135. While acting under the color of state law and within the course and scope of their
employment as police officers for LVMPD unlawful use of excessive force, and DOES 1-5, killed
DECEDENT, who did not intentionally strike or threaten anyone, deprived DECEDENT of his
rights and liberties secured to him by the Fourth and Fourteenth Amendments, including the right to
be free from unreasonable search and seizure and excessive force.

136. The training policies of the Defendant LVMPD were not adequate to train its police
officers, including, but not limited to, SMITH, HUNTSMAN, and DOES 1-10, with regard to using
deadly force. As a result, LVMPD police officers, including Defendants SMITH, HUNTSMAN,
and DOES 1-5, are not able to handle the usual and recurring situations with which they must deal,
such as confronting individuals with mental and emotional disabilities, properly giving commands
and warnings to such individuals, and using deadly force. These inadequate training policies existed

prior to the date of this incident and continue to this day, including, but not limited to:

(@) Failure to train officers on how to approach or handle individuals who have
mental and/or emotional disabilities so as to prevent their death by officer-
involved shooting;

(b) Failure to train officers on whether or not a suspect posed an immediate threat
to officers which Decedent did not;

(c) Failure to train officers about what constitutes active resistance to arrest, what
constitutes probable cause for arrest; what constitutes the totality of
circumstances for use of force;

(d) Failure to train officers on the reasonableness of a particular use of force
based on the perspective of a reasonable officer at the scene rather than with
20/20 vision of hindsight;

(e) Failure to train officers on the calculus of reasonableness which embodied an

allowance for the fact of split-second judgment about the amount of force that
is necessary for the particular situation involving Decedent;
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()] Failure to train officers on what actions are “objectively reasonable” in light
of the facts confronting them, without regard to their underlying intent or
motivation;

(9) Failure to train regarding crisis intervention, mental disabilities, and CPR.

(h) Failure to train officers to not place vulnerable persons in a prone position and
then place weight on them causing positional asphyxia.

137. The Defendants LVMPD was deliberately indifferent to the known or obvious
consequences of its failure to train and/or supervise its police officers, including SMITH,
HUNTSMAN, and DOES 1-5, adequately with regard to critical situations. This inadequate training
includes failing to teach officers to restrain from the use of excessive force upon confronting a
person with mental and/or emotional disabilities and training for suspects with such disabilities and
to prevent their death in custody of police officers using methods known to cause death.

138. Defendants LVMPD has numerous in-custody deaths. Many of these deaths involve
individuals who suffer from mental and/or emotional disabilities. LVMPD was and is aware that
there is a reoccurring problem with their officer’s use of deadly force.  In other words, LVMPD
was aware that there was a problem involving numerous officer-involved deaths of individuals in
custody, which could have been avoided had the officers employed well known and accepted police
tactics and techniques and to avoid having to unnecessarily use excessive and deadly force in the
exercise of the decision to take individuals with disabilities into custody and not place persons,
especially older, protected persons in a prone position.

139. LVMPD was aware that failure to implement adequate training with regards to their
officers would result in LVMPD continuing to have numerous unreasonable officer-involved deaths
of individuals with disabilities while these individuals are in the custody of or otherwise being
restrained by LVMPD.

140. The training that LVMPD police officers, including Officers SMITH and
HUNTSMAN should have received with regard to the use of deadly force against individuals with
disabilities includes training that officers should have knowledge of when to use or not to utilize

excessive force, when to take individuals with disabilities in a prone position.
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141. On information and belief, the training provided to LVMPD police officers,
including, LVMPD Defendants SMITH, HUNTSMAN, and DOES 1-5, and DOES 6-10, with regard
to using deadly force against individuals, including, but not limited to, individuals with mental
and/or emotional disabilities, did not include training that officers should avoid forcible taking
disabled individuals into custody to get these individuals hand-cuffed and in-custody by using less
than lethal force when confronting individuals with such disabilities unless they have a reasonable
fear of death or great bodily injury, especially when their sergeant told them to leave.

142. The training that LVMPD police officers, including LVMPD Defendants SMITH,
HUNTSMAN, and DOES 1-5, and DOES 6-10 received with regards to using deadly force against
individuals was inadequate because it has continuously resulted in numerous unreasonable uses of
deadly force by LVMPD police officers including deaths of individuals while being restrained by
LVMPD or in custody of LVMPD annually (going back at least five (5) years). Further, the training
that LVMPD police officers, DOES 1-10, including LVMPD Defendants SMITH, HUNTSMAN,
and DOES 1-5, received with regard to using deadly force against individuals with disabilities were
inadequate because it failed to implement well known and accepted police tactics and techniques for
dealing with individuals without having to use deadly force against them. These well-known and
accepted police practices and techniques are routinely used to train law enforcement from other
agencies such as the Los Angeles Police Department, the Los Angeles County Sheriff’s Department,
and the California Highway Patrol. Further, most police officers properly train their officers in crisis
intervention.

143.  The failure of Defendant LVMPD and DOES 6-10, to provide adequate training with
regard to when to use or not use deadly force, caused the deprivation of the DECEDENT’S
constitutional rights by Defendants SMITH, HUNTSMAN, and DOES 1-5. In other words, the
Defendant LVMPD’S failure to train is so closely related to the deprivation of the DECEDENT’S
rights as to be the moving force that caused the ultimate injury.

144. By failing to provide adequate training to LVMPD’S police officers, including
Defendants SMITH, HUNTSMAN, and DOES 1-10, acted with an intentional, reckless, and callous
disregard for the life of DECEDENT, his constitutional rights and that of the Plaintiff. All
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Defendants’ actions were willful, wanton, oppressive, malicious, fraudulent, and extremely offensive
and unconscionable to any person of normal sensibilities.

145. By reason of the aforementioned acts and omissions of Defendants LVMPD and
DOES 1-10, Plaintiff ROCHELLE SCOTT suffered loss of love, companionship, affection, comfort,
care, society, and future support of DECEDENT.

146. Accordingly, Defendants LVMPD and DOES 6-10, each are liable to Plaintiff for
compensatory damages under 42 U.S.C. § 1983.

147. Plaintiff SCOTT seeks all permissible wrongful death damages under Nev. Rev. Stat.
841.085, including, but not limited to, damages for her grief, sorrow, loss of probable support,
companionship, society, comfort and consortium, and damages for pain, suffering of the
DECEDENT, any penalties, including, but not limited to, exemplary and punitive damages against
individual defendants.

148. Plaintiffs, as CO-SPECIAL ADMINISTRATORS of Decedent’s estate, seek all
permissible damages under Nev. Rev. Stat. § 41.100 and the Fourth Amendment to the U.S.
Constitution.

149. Plaintiffs also seeks statutory attorneys’ fees and costs under this claim.

SEVENTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
MUNICIPAL LIABILITY— RATIFICATION (42 U.S.C. § 1983)
(PLAINTIFFS v. LVMPD and DOES 6-10)

150. Plaintiffs repeat and reallege each and every allegation as set forth hereinabove of this
Complaint with the same force and effect as if fully set forth herein.

151. LVMPD Defendants SMITH, HUNTSMAN and DOES 1-5, acted under color of law
when they restrained DECEDENT in manner so as to cause his death and failed to render immediate
medical assistance to DECEDENT.

152. The acts and/or failure to act of Defendants SMITH, HUNTSMAN, DOES 1-5, and
DOES 6-10 deprived Plaintiff of his particular rights under the United States Constitution.

153. DOES 6-10 acted under color of state law.

154. DOES 6-10 acted or purported to act in performance of official duties under state,

county, or municipal law, ordinance or regulation.
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155. DOES 6-10 had final policymaking authority from Defendant LVMPD concerning
the acts and/or failure to act of Defendants SMITH, HUNTSMAN, and DOES 1-5,

156. LVMPD and DOES 6-10 ratified the actions and failure to act of SMITH,
HUNTSMAN, including their use of excessive and/or unreasonable force in the restraint of
DECEDENT. That is, DOES 5-10, including supervisors, knew of and specifically made a
deliberate choice to approve SMITH and HUNTSMAN’s acts and the basis for it.

157. Upon information and belief, Defendants SMITH, HUNTSMAN, LVMPD and
DOES 1-5 knew that DECEDENT posed no threat of a clear and present danger of death or serious
bodily injury to himself or others.

158. Defendants DOES 6-10 ratification of the acts and/or omissions of SMITH,

HUNTSMAN, include, but are not limited to:

@) On information and belief Defendants SMITH and/or HUNTSMAN are still
employed with LVMPD;

(b) DOES 5-10 failed to conduct a prompt and through investigation of the events
involving DECEDENT’S death and the conduct of SMITH and/or
HUNTSMAN;

(c) Defendant LVMPD, upon information and belief, did not do anything or take
any action with respect to DECEDENT’S death, resulting in de facto
ratification;

(d) Defendant LVMPD allowed the use of excessive force in the restraint of
individuals with disabilities, such as DECEDENT;

(e) Failure to follow proper protocol in dealing with individuals with mental
and/or emotional disabilities;

()] Allowing untrained officers to tell the media that arrestees die from excited
delirium.

(9) Condoned the placement of vulnerable, disabled persons in a prone position
with body weight on top of them resulting in positional asphyxia.

159.  Upon information and belief, Defendant LVMPD approved of the officers’ actions.

160. Plaintiff ROCHELLE SCOTT seeks all permissible wrongful death damages under
Nev. Rev. Stat. 841.085, including, but not limited to, damages for her grief, sorrow, loss of
probable support, companionship, society, comfort and consortium, and damages for pain, suffering

of the DECEDENT, any penalties, including, but not limited to, exemplary and punitive damages.
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161. Plaintiffs, as CO-SPECIAL ADMINISTRATORS of DECEDENT’S estate, seek all
permissible damages under Nev. Rev. Stat. § 41.100 and the Fourth Amendment to the U.S.
Constitution.

162. Plaintiffs also seek statutory attorney fees and costs under this claim.

EIGHTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
BATTERY - WRONGFUL DEATH (Nevada State Law Claim)
(PLAINTIFFS v. ALL DEFENDANTS)

163. Plaintiffs repeat and re-allege each and every allegation as set forth hereinabove of
this Complaint with the same force and effect as if fully set forth herein.

164. Defendants SMITH, HUNTSMAN, and DOES 1-5, while working as Police officers
for LVMPD, and acting within the course and scope of their duties, used unreasonable and excessive
force when they intentionally made decision to restrain and take DECEDENT into custody.

165. In particular, Defendants SMITH, HUNTSMAN and DOES 1-5 intentionally
restrained and took DECEDENT into custody, unnecessarily engaging in physical struggle with
DECEDENT, thereby used unwarranted, unreasonable excessive and deadly force leading to his
death. DECEDENT did not consent to being held in a manner that would lead to his death while
being restrained and in custody of LVMPD.

166. As a result of the action and inactions of Defendants SMITH, HUNTSMAN and
DOES 1-5, DECEDENT suffered severe pain and suffering and ultimately died from his injuries.
Defendants SMITH, HUNTSMAN had no legal justification for using said force, including deadly
force, against DECEDENT and said Defendants’ SMITH and HUNTSMAN'’S exercise of force
while carrying out their officer duties was an unreasonable use of deadly force.

167. As adirect and proximate result of Defendants’ misconduct and omissions as alleged
above, DECEDENT died and Plaintiff ROCHELLE SCOTT suffered extreme and severe mental
anguish and pain and have been injured in mind and body. Plaintiff ROCHELLE SCOTT has been
deprived of the life-long love, companionship, comfort, support, society, care and sustenance of

DECEDENT and will continue to be so deprived for the remainder of her natural life.
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168. Defendant LVMPD is vicariously liable for the wrongful acts of Defendants SMITH,
HUNTSMAN and DOES 1-5, because they were acting under color of law and within the course and
scope of their employment as police officers for the LVMPD.

169. The conduct of SMITH, HUNTSMAN were malicious, wanton, oppressive, and
accomplished with a conscious disregard for the rights of Plaintiff and DECEDENT, entitling
Plaintiffs to an award of exemplary and punitive damages.

170. Plaintiff ROCHELLE SCOTT seeks all permissible wrongful death damages under
Nev. Rev. Stat. 841.085, including, but not limited to, damages for her grief, sorrow, loss of
probable support, companionship, society, comfort and consortium, and damages for pain, suffering
of the DECEDENT, any penalties, including, but not limited to, exemplary and punitive damages.

171. Plaintiffs also seeks statutory attorney fees under this claim.

NINTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
NEGLIGENCE - WRONGFUL DEATH (Nevada State Law Claim)
(PLAINTIFFS v. ALL DEFENDANTS)

172. Plaintiffs repeat and re-allege each and every allegation as set forth herein above of
this Complaint with the same force and effect as if fully set forth herein.
173. The actions and inactions of the Defendants were negligent and reckless, including

but not limited to:

@) The failure to properly and adequately assess the need to approach
DECEDENT and use deadly force against DECEDENT or to restrain
DECEDENT by engaging in deadly physical struggle with DECEDENT;

(b) The negligent tactics and handling of the situation with DECEDENT,
including deadly restraint of DECEDENT while he was in crisis and/or
delusional, paranoid state and the failure to allow DECEDENT time calm
down, to comply with their commands;

(c) The negligent use of deadly and excessive force against DECEDENT;

(d) The negligent use of deadly force, including the negligent use of physical
restraint procedures known to cause death and substantial bodily harm;

(e) The failure to properly train and supervise employees, both professional and
non-professional, including, handling situations involving individuals with
mental and/or emotional disabilities so as to prevent their death in custody by
procedures of restraint known to cause death and/or substantial bodily harm;
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()] The failure to ensure that adequate numbers of employees with appropriate
education and training were available to meet the needs of and protect the
rights of DECEDENT;

(9) The negligent handling of evidence and witnesses;

(h) The negligent investigation into the conduct of SMITH, HUNTSMAN and the
events relating to Decedent’s death and/or failure of LVMPD to conduct a
prompt and thorough investigation into the actions/inactions of SMITH and
HUNTSMAN;

Q) Violating LVMPD’s policy regarding use of deadly force;

() Restraining DECEDENT while DECEDENT was suffering from a mental
disability and paranoid delusions;

(k) For giving inadequate verbal warnings and commands, and not providing
DECEDENT an opportunity to comply;

M Failing to render medical, aid and assistance to DECEDENT;

(m)  the placement of vulnerable, disabled persons in a prone position with body
weight on top of them resulting in positional asphyxia.

174. As a direct and proximate result of Defendants’ conduct as alleged above, and other
undiscovered negligent conduct, DECEDENT was caused to suffer severe pain and suffering and
ultimately died.

175. As a direct and proximate result of Defendants’ conduct as alleged above, Plaintiffs
suffered extreme and severe mental anguish and pain and has been injured in mind and body.
Plaintiff ROCHELLE SCOTT has been deprived of the life-long love, companionship, comfort,
support, society, care and sustenance of DECEDENT and will continue to be so deprived for the
remainder of her natural life.

176. LVMPD is vicariously liable for the wrongful acts of SMITH, HUNTSMAN, and
DOES 1-5, because they acted under color of law and within the course and scope of their
employment as police officers for the LVMPD.

177. Upon information and belief, the negligent acts of SMITH, HUNTSMAN and DOES
1-5, which resulted in bodily harm, including death to DECEDENT were vicariously condoned by
LVMPD.

178. Plaintiffs seeks all permissible damages under Nev. Rev. Stat. 841.085, including, but

not limited to, damages for her grief, sorrow, loss of probable support, companionship, society,
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comfort and consortium, and damages for pain, suffering of the DECEDENT, any penalties,
including, but not limited to, exemplary and punitive damages.
179. Plaintiffs also seeks statutory attorneys’ fees and costs under this claim.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff ROCHELLE SCOTT individually, as surviving daughter of
Decedent ROY ANTHONY SCOTT, and as SPECIAL ADMINISTRATORS of Decedent’s estate
along with FREDRICK WAID, requests entry of judgment in their favor and against Defendants
LVMPD, KYLE SMITH, THEODORE HUNTSMAN and DOES 1-10, inclusive, as follows:

A For compensatory damages, including both survival damages and wrongful death

damages under federal and state law, in an amount to be proven at trial;

B. For hedonic damages;

C. For funeral and burial expenses;

D. For medical billing and expenses;

E. For punitive damages against individual Defendants in an amount to be proven at

trial;

F. For interest;

G. For reasonable costs of this action, court costs, and attorneys’ fees; and

H. For such other and further relief as the Court may deem just, proper, and appropriate.
DATED: October 7, 2020 PETER GOLDSTEIN LAW CORP

By: /s/ Peter Goldstein

Peter Goldstein
Attorneys for Plaintiffs
ROCHELLE SCOTT, individually, and as co-special
administrator of the estate of ROY ANTHONY SCOTT;
and FREDRICK WAID, as co-special administrator
of the estate of ROY ANTHONY SCOTT

I
I
I
I

32




© 00 ~N o o b~ w NP

T T N N N T N T N T N O e N I T e e e =
©® N o U B~ W N P O © ©® N o o~ W N Lk O

Case 2:20-cv-01872-RFB-EJY Document 1 Filed 10/07/20 Page 33 of 33

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Plaintiffs hereby demand a trial by jury.
DATED: October 7, 2020 PETER GOLDSTEIN LAW CORP

By: /s/ Peter Goldstein

Peter Goldstein
Attorneys for Plaintiffs
ROCHELLE SCOTT, individually, and as co-special
administrator of the estate of ROY ANTHONY SCOTT;
and FREDRICK WAID, as co-special administrator
of the estate of ROY ANTHONY SCOTT
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EXHIBIT A



DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

- VITAL STATISTICS =
CASE FILE NO. 4071166 CERTIFICATE OF DEATH I 2019004679
TYPE OR STATE FILE NUMBER

% BRINTIN 1a. DECEASED-NAME (FIRST,MIDDLE LAST SUFFIX) 2. DATE OF DEATH (Mc/Day/Year) 3a. COUNTY OF DEATH
© PERMANENT Roy Anthony / SCOTT March 03, 2019 Clark
R LA 3b, CITY, TOWN, OR LOCATION OF DEATH |3c. HOSPITAL OR OTHER INSTITUTION -Name(If nct either, give streat ar{3e.If Hosp, or Inst. indicate DOA, OP/Emer. Rm. 4. SEX
2 > : : ! Inpatient(Specify)

DECEDENT Las Vegas Valley Hospital Medical Center Emergency Room / Outpatient Male

5. RACE (Specify) 8. Hispanic Origin? Specify 7a. AGE-Last birthday7b UNDER 1 YEAR [7c. UNDER 1 DAY '8 DATE OF BIRTH {Mo/Day/Y()
Black No - Non-Hispanic (Years) 65 'MUSTUIYS_ HOURS I MINS January 26, 1954

IFDEATH  [Sa  STATE OF BIRTH (If not USICA,  [eb. CITIZEN OF WHAT COUNTRY [10 EDUCATION[11:MARITAL STATUS (Specify) ~ i2. SURVIVING SPOUSE'S NAME (Last name priof 1o st mariage)

OSCURRED I [name conty)  California United States 12 Widoved
o [13. SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER 14a. USUAL OCCUPATION (Give Kind of WorK Dore During Most of | 14b. KIND OF BUSINESS OR INDUSTRY Everin US Armed
LI A | DISABLED DISABLED Forces? No
ITEMS 15a RESIDENCE - STATE  [150. COUNTY 15c. CITY, TOWN OR LOCATION [ 15d. STREET AND NUMBER :lﬁhglggs,lsﬁfbfjﬂ
No) =
- L Nevada Clark Las Veaas 3601 El Conlon B Yes
E— 16. FATHER/PARENT - NAME (First Middle Last  Suffix) 17: MOTHER/PARENT -NAME (First Middle Last Suffix) :
g PARENIS Robert SCOTT Elizabeth GILLS
18a. INFORMANT- NAME (Type or Print) 18b. MAILING ADDRESS ~ (Street or-R.F.D. No, City cr Town, State, Zip) 3
Rochelle SCOTT 18273 Manzanita Street Hesperia, California 92345 %
e - 19a, BURIAL, CREMATION, REMOVAL, OTHER (Specify) |19b. CEMETERY OR CREMATORY - NAME 19c. LOCATION  City or Town  State 2
L 1:DISPOSITION Cremation Paradise Valley Crematory Las Vegas Nevada 89119 3
= 20a. FUNERAL DIRECTCR - SIGNATURE (Or Person Acting as Such)  [20b. FUNERAL DIRECTOF|20c. NAME AND ADDRESS OF FACILITY %
A BRANDY M HALL LICENSE NUMBER Las Veqas Cremations ‘;3
_ SIGNATURE AUTHENTICATED FDg44 5555 W Charleston Blvd Las Vegas NV 89146 g
‘TRADE CALL [TRADE CALL - NAME AND ADDRESS £
% > % 21a, To the best of my knowledge, death occurred at the time, date and place and due | h 22a On the tasis of examination and/or investigation, in my opinion death occurred g
3 = S tothe cause(s) stated.(Signature & Title) z = 2 atthe time, date and place and due to the cause(s) stated (Signature & Title) >
E e % - LEONARDO P ROQUERO MD SIGNATURE AUTHENTICATED
CERTIFIER | 2 21b DATE SIGNED (Mo/Day/Yr) 21c. HOUR OF DEATH S 2 22b, DATE SIGNED (Mc/DayiYr) 22c. HOUR OF DEATH
SE 3 March 20. 2018 04:38
& £ 21d. NAME OF ATTENDING PHYSICIAN IF OTHER THAN CERTIFIER @ £ 22d. PRONOUNCED DEAD (Mo/Day/Yr) 22s. PRONOUNCED DEAD AT (Hour)
= §  (Type or Print) 2 March 03, 2019 04:38
23a. NAME AND ADDRESS OF CERTIFIER (PHYSICIAN, ATTENDING PHYSICIAN, MEDICAL EXAMINER, OR CORONER] (Type or Print) 23b LICENSE NUMBER
Leonardo P Roquero MD 1704 Pinto Lane Las Vegas, NV 839106 16688
243 REGISTRAR [Signature 24b. DATE RECEIVED BY REGISTRAR 24c. DEATH DUE TO COMMUNICABLE DISEASE
REGISTRAR il NANCY BARRY e 5
; SIGNATURE AUTHENTICATED March 20, 2019 ves [] NO
: * CAUSE OF 25 IMMEDIATE CAUSE (ENTER ONLY ONE CAUSE PER LINE FOR (a), (b), AND (c).) 1 Interval between onset'and ceath
L}
DEATH | PART! _ ., Methamphetamine Intoxication :
DUE TO, OR AS A CONSEQUENCE OF: 1 Interval between onset and ceath
CONDITIONS iF bl :
ANY WHICH \ .
E RISE T 3 ) '
: GGAVMEDISATEO DUE TO, OR AS A CONSEQUENCE OF ] Interval between onset and death
B CAUSE _ () '
SN  STATING THE 1)
< UNDERLYING DUE TO, OR AS A CONSEQUENCE OF ' Interval between onset and death
CAUSE LAST ‘
#E (d) '
4 PART Il OTHER SIGNIFICANT CONDITIONS-Conditions contributing to death but not rasulting in the underlying cause given in Part 1. 26. AUTOPSY (Specit|27. WAS CASE
3 Paranoid Schizophrenia, Hypertansive And Arteriosclerotic Cardiovascular Disease Yes or No) REFERRED TO CORONER
es (Specify Yesor r\o)Yes
28a. ACC., SUICIDE, HOM., UNDET.  |28b. DATE OF INJURY (Ma/Day/Yr) 28¢. HOUR OF INJURY 280d. DOESCRIBE HOW INJURY OCCURRED
OR PENDING INVEST. (Specify) Used DFU s
ol ACCIDENT 9
282 INJURY AT WORK (Specify |28f. PLACE OF INJURY- At home, farm, streat, factory, office 28 TOCATION STREET ORRFD No.  CITY OR TOWN STATE
d YesorNo)  No building, etc. (Specify) Residence RA0LRLCanlonAvante Las Vegas  Nevada

LOCAL REGISTRAR

VRS-Rev-20120523a

‘CERTIFIED TO BE A TRUE AND CORRECT COPY OF THE DOCUMENT ON FILE WITH THE REGISTRAR
OF VITAL STATISTICS, STATE OF NEVADA.” This copy was issued by the Southern Nevada Health District
from State certified documents authorized by the State Board of Health pursuant to NRS 440.175.

Reglsllar of Vital Statistics

DATEISSUED:  MAR 2 5 2019 By: 6/'/

This Copy not valid unless prepared on engraved border dusiSTaymg ddll: seal and B
SOUTHERN NEVADA HEALTH DISTRICT » P.O. Box 3902 « Las Vegas, NV 89127 - 702-

9-1010 - Tax ID # 88- 0151573

TION OR ERASURE VOIDS THIS CERTIFICATE [
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OASA

Peter Goldstein, Esq., (SBN 6992)
PETER GOLDSTEIN LAW CORP
10161 Park Run Drive, Suite 150

Las Vegas Nevada, 89145

Telephone: 702-474-6400
Facsimile: 888-400-8799
peter@petergoldsteinlaw.com

Attorney for Petitioners
ROCHELLE SCOTT and FREDRICK WAID

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

In the Matter of the Estate of Case No.: P-20-103632-E
ROY ANTHONY SCOTT
Dept. 26

Deceased,
PROPOSEDORDER

ORDER APPOINTING SPECIAL ADMINISTRATOR AND FOR ISSUANCE OF
SPECIAL LETTERS OF ADMINISTRATION
Upon submission of a verified ex parte petition for appointment of a special administrator
and for issuance of special letters of administration representing as follows:
Roy Anthony Scott (“Decedent”) died intestate on March 3, 2019 in Clark County,
Nevada.
1. Decedent was a resident of Clark County, Nevada when he died.
2. Petitioners have never been convicted of a felony.
NOW THEREFORE IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Petitioners Rochelle Scott and
Fredrick Waid are appointed as Special Co-Administrators of the Estate of Roy Anthony Scott and
that Special Letters of Administration be issued, without bond, to Petitioners Rochelle Scott and

Fredrick Waid upon taking the oath of office, for the purpose of administering the estate in

1
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accordance with Nevada Revised Statutes Chapter §140.040.
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that all moneys received by this Estate will be placed in
the attorney’s trust account until further ordered by the Court.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the settlement of the Decedent’s lawsuit is subject to

this Court’s approval.

Dated this day of July, 2020.

Respectfully submitted,
D —
By:_I
PETER GOLDSTEIN, ESQ. [SBN 6992]
10161 Park Run Drive, Suite 150
Las Vegas, Nevada 89145
Attorney for Petitioners
Rochelle Scott and Fredrick Waid

Dated this 19th day of August, 202(

w_“

District COLEHéIdﬁ?F F95C 1E88

Gloria Sturman
District Court Judge
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CSERV
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
In the Matter of: CASE NO: P-20-103632-E
Roy Scott, Deceased DEPT. NO. Department 26

AUTOMATED CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

This automated certificate of service was generated by the Eighth Judicial District
Court. The foregoing Order Appointing Special Administrator was served via the court’s
electronic eFile system to all recipients registered for e-Service on the above entitled case as
listed below:

Service Date: 8/19/2020

Peter Goldstein peter@petergoldsteinlaw.com
Toni Gesin toni@petergoldsteinlaw.com
Staff Peter Goldstein Law Corp staff@petergoldsteinlaw.com

If indicated below, a copy of the above mentioned filings were also served by mail
via United States Postal Service, postage prepaid, to the parties listed below at their last
known addresses on 8/20/2020

Peter Goldstein Peter Goldstein Law Corp.
Attn: Peter Goldstein
10161 Park Run Drive, Suite 150
Las Vegas, NV, 89145
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IRé@HEhilggWindividually, and as co-special administrator of the

estate of ROY ANTHONY SCOTT; and FREDRICK WAID, as co-special
administrator of the estate of ROY ANTHONY SCOTT
(b) County of Residence of First Listed Plaintiff ~ San Bernardino
(EXCEPT IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES)

LR&EE@R@HE‘?ROPOUTAN POLICE DEPARTMENT; KYLE
SMITH, individually; THEODORE HUNTSMAN, individually; and
DOES 1-10, inclusive
County of Residence of First Listed Defendant ~ Clark
(IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES ONLY)
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NOTE:

(c) Attorneys (Firm Name, Address, and Telephone Number) Attorneys (If Known)

Peter Goldstein, Esq. (702) 474-6400
10161 Park Run Drive, Suite 150, Las Vegas, Nevada 89145
Email: peter@petergoldsteinlaw.com
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| CONTRACT TORTS FORFEITURE/PENALTY BANKRUPTCY OTHER STATUTES ]
3 110 Insurance PERSONAL INJURY PERSONAL INJURY |3 625 Drug Related Seizure 3 422 Appeal 28 USC 158 O 375 False Claims Act
0 120 Marine 3 310 Airplane O 365 Personal Injury - of Property 21 USC 881 |3 423 Withdrawal 3 376 Qui Tam (31 USC
3 130 Miller Act 3 315 Airplane Product Product Liability [ 690 Other 28 USC 157 3729(a))
[ 140 Negotiable Instrument Liability 3 367 Health Care/ [ 400 State Reapportionment
3 150 Recovery of Overpayment | (3 320 Assault, Libel & Pharmaceutical PROPERTY RIGHTS 3 410 Antitrust
& Enforcement of Judgment Slander Personal Injury [ 820 Copyrights [ 430 Banks and Banking
3 151 Medicare Act 3 330 Federal Employers’ Product Liability 3 830 Patent [ 450 Commerce
[ 152 Recovery of Defaulted Liability 3 368 Asbestos Personal [ 835 Patent - Abbreviated [ 460 Deportation
Student Loans 3 340 Marine Injury Product New Drug Application |3 470 Racketeer Influenced and
(Excludes Veterans) (3 345 Marine Product Liability 1 840 Trademark Corrupt Organizations
O 153 Recovery of Overpayment Liability PERSONAL PROPERTY LABOR SOCIAL SECURITY 3 480 Consumer Credit
of Veteran’s Benefits 3 350 Motor Vehicle [ 370 Other Fraud [ 710 Fair Labor Standards [ 861 HIA (1395ff) [ 490 Cable/Sat TV
3 160 Stockholders’ Suits [ 355 Motor Vehicle 3 371 Truth in Lending Act [ 862 Black Lung (923) [ 850 Securities/Commodities/
3 190 Other Contract Product Liability 3 380 Other Personal [ 720 Labor/Management 3 863 DIWC/DIWW (405(g)) Exchange
[ 195 Contract Product Liability |3 360 Other Personal Property Damage Relations [ 864 SSID Title XVI 3 890 Other Statutory Actions
[ 196 Franchise Injury 3 385 Property Damage [ 740 Railway Labor Act 3 865 RSI (405(g)) [ 891 Agricultural Acts
3 362 Personal Injury - Product Liability 3 751 Family and Medical O 893 Environmental Matters
Medical Malpractice Leave Act [ 895 Freedom of Information
| REAL PROPERTY CIVIL RIGHTS PRISONER PETITIONS |7 790 Other Labor Litigation FEDERAL TAX SUITS Act
0 210 Land Condemnation X 440 Other Civil Rights Habeas Corpus: 3 791 Employee Retirement 3 870 Taxes (U.S. Plaintiff 3 896 Arbitration
3 220 Foreclosure 3 441 Voting [ 463 Alien Detainee Income Security Act or Defendant) [ 899 Administrative Procedure
[ 230 Rent Lease & Ejectment 3 442 Employment 3 510 Motions to Vacate [ 871 IRS—Third Party Act/Review or Appeal of
3 240 Torts to Land 3 443 Housing/ Sentence 26 USC 7609 Agency Decision
3 245 Tort Product Liability Accommodations 3 530 General [ 950 Constitutionality of
3 290 All Other Real Property 3 445 Amer. w/Disabilities - | 3 535 Death Penalty IMMIGRATION State Statutes
Employment Other: [ 462 Naturalization Application
3 446 Amer. w/Disabilities - | 0 540 Mandamus & Other |3 465 Other Immigration
Other O 550 Civil Rights Actions
3 448 Education 3 555 Prison Condition
[ 560 Civil Detainee -
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X1 Original
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Cite the U.S. Civil Statute under which you are filing (Do not cite jurisdictional statutes unless diversity):

42 U.S.C. § 1983

Brief description of cause:

Unreasonable Search and Seizure, Denial of Medical Care, Deprivation of Familial Relations

(0 CHECK IF THIS IS A CLASS ACTION DEMAND $ CHECK YES only if demanded in complaint:

VI. CAUSE OF ACTION

VII. REQUESTED IN

COMPLAINT: UNDER RULE 23, F.R.Cv.P. JURY DEMAND: N Yes  No
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR ATTORNEYS COMPLETING CIVIL COVER SHEET FORM JS 44
Authority For Civil Cover Sheet

The JS 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replaces nor supplements the filings and service of pleading or other papers as
required by law, except as provided by local rules of court. This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is
required for the use of the Clerk of Court for the purpose of initiating the civil docket sheet. Consequently, a civil cover sheet is submitted to the Clerk of
Court for each civil complaint filed. The attorney filing a case should complete the form as follows:

I.(a) Plaintiffs-Defendants. Enter names (last, first, middle initial) of plaintiff and defendant. If the plaintiff or defendant is a government agency, use
only the full name or standard abbreviations. If the plaintiff or defendant is an official within a government agency, identify first the agency and
then the official, giving both name and title.

(b) County of Residence. For each civil case filed, except U.S. plaintiff cases, enter the name of the county where the first listed plaintiff resides at the
time of filing. In U.S. plaintiff cases, enter the name of the county in which the first listed defendant resides at the time of filing. (NOTE: In land
condemnation cases, the county of residence of the "defendant” is the location of the tract of land involved.)

(c¢) Attorneys. Enter the firm name, address, telephone number, and attorney of record. If there are several attorneys, list them on an attachment, noting
in this section "(see attachment)".

1I. Jurisdiction. The basis of jurisdiction is set forth under Rule 8(a), F.R.Cv.P., which requires that jurisdictions be shown in pleadings. Place an "X"
in one of the boxes. If there is more than one basis of jurisdiction, precedence is given in the order shown below.
United States plaintiff. (1) Jurisdiction based on 28 U.S.C. 1345 and 1348. Suits by agencies and officers of the United States are included here.
United States defendant. (2) When the plaintiff is suing the United States, its officers or agencies, place an "X" in this box.
Federal question. (3) This refers to suits under 28 U.S.C. 1331, where jurisdiction arises under the Constitution of the United States, an amendment
to the Constitution, an act of Congress or a treaty of the United States. In cases where the U.S. is a party, the U.S. plaintiff or defendant code takes
precedence, and box 1 or 2 should be marked.
Diversity of citizenship. (4) This refers to suits under 28 U.S.C. 1332, where parties are citizens of different states. When Box 4 is checked, the
citizenship of the different parties must be checked. (See Section III below; NOTE: federal question actions take precedence over diversity
cases.)

III.  Residence (citizenship) of Principal Parties. This section of the JS 44 is to be completed if diversity of citizenship was indicated above. Mark this
section for each principal party.

IV.  Nature of Suit. Place an "X" in the appropriate box. If there are multiple nature of suit codes associated with the case, pick the nature of suit code
that is most applicable. Click here for: Nature of Suit Code Descriptions.

V. Origin. Place an "X" in one of the seven boxes.
Original Proceedings. (1) Cases which originate in the United States district courts.
Removed from State Court. (2) Proceedings initiated in state courts may be removed to the district courts under Title 28 U.S.C., Section 1441.
When the petition for removal is granted, check this box.
Remanded from Appellate Court. (3) Check this box for cases remanded to the district court for further action. Use the date of remand as the filing
date.
Reinstated or Reopened. (4) Check this box for cases reinstated or reopened in the district court. Use the reopening date as the filing date.
Transferred from Another District. (5) For cases transferred under Title 28 U.S.C. Section 1404(a). Do not use this for within district transfers or
multidistrict litigation transfers.
Multidistrict Litigation — Transfer. (6) Check this box when a multidistrict case is transferred into the district under authority of Title 28 U.S.C.
Section 1407.
Multidistrict Litigation — Direct File. (8) Check this box when a multidistrict case is filed in the same district as the Master MDL docket.
PLEASE NOTE THAT THERE IS NOT AN ORIGIN CODE 7. Origin Code 7 was used for historical records and is no longer relevant due to
changes in statue.

VL Cause of Action. Report the civil statute directly related to the cause of action and give a brief description of the cause. Do not cite jurisdictional
statutes unless diversity. Example: U.S. Civil Statute: 47 USC 553 Brief Description: Unauthorized reception of cable service

VII. Requested in Complaint. Class Action. Place an "X" in this box if you are filing a class action under Rule 23, F.R.Cv.P.
Demand. In this space enter the actual dollar amount being demanded or indicate other demand, such as a preliminary injunction.

Jury Demand. Check the appropriate box to indicate whether or not a jury is being demanded.

VIII. Related Cases. This section of the JS 44 is used to reference related pending cases, if any. If there are related pending cases, insert the docket
numbers and the corresponding judge names for such cases.

Date and Attorney Signature. Date and sign the civil cover sheet.
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AO 440 (Rev. 06/12) Summons in a Civil Action

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

for the
District of Nevada

ROCHELLE SCOTT, individually, and as co-special
administrator of the estate of ROY ANTHONY SCOTT;
and FREDRICK WAID, as co-special administrator of
the estate of ROY ANTHONY SCOTT

Plaintiff(s)

V. Civil Action No. 2:20-cv-1872

LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE
DEPARTMENT; KYLE SMITH, individually;
THEODORE HUNTSMAN, indvidually; and DOES
1-10, inclusive

Defendant(s)

N N N N N N N N N N N N

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

To: (Defendant’s name and address) LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE DEPARTMENT
400 South Martin L. King Boulevard
Las Vegas, Nevada 89106

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you
are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ.
P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff’s attorney,
whose name and address are:  Peter Goldstein, Esq.

PETER GOLSTEIN LAW CORP
10161 Park Run Drive, Suite 150
Las Vegas, Nevada 89145
Telephone: (702) 474-6400

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint.
You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

CLERK OF COURT

Date:

Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk
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AO 440 (Rev. 06/12) Summons in a Civil Action (Page 2)

Civil Action No.

PROOF OF SERVICE
(This section should not be filed with the court unless required by Fed. R. Civ. P. 4 (1))

This summons for (name of individual and title, if any)

was received by me on (date)

(O I personally served the summons on the individual at (place)

on (date) ; or

(3 I left the summons at the individual’s residence or usual place of abode with (name)
, a person of suitable age and discretion who resides there,

on (date) , and mailed a copy to the individual’s last known address; or

(3 I served the summons on (name of individual) , who is

designated by law to accept service of process on behalf of (name of organization)

on (date) ; or
(O I returned the summons unexecuted because ; or
(A Other (specify):
My fees are $ for travel and $ for services, for a total of $ 0.00

I declare under penalty of perjury that this information is true.

Date:
Server’s signature

Printed name and title

Server’s address

Additional information regarding attempted service, etc:
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AO 440 (Rev. 06/12) Summons in a Civil Action

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

for the
District of Nevada

ROCHELLE SCOTT, individually, and as co-special
administrator of the estate of ROY ANTHONY SCOTT;
and FREDRICK WAID, as co-special administrator of
the estate of ROY ANTHONY SCOTT

Plaintiff(s)

V. Civil Action No. 2:20-cv-1872

LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE
DEPARTMENT; KYLE SMITH, individually;
THEODORE HUNTSMAN, indvidually; and DOES
1-10, inclusive

Defendant(s)

N N N N N N N N N N N N

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

To: (Defendant’s name and address) THEODORE HUNTSMAN, individually
c/o LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE DEPARTMENT
400 South Martin L. King Boulevard
Las Vegas, Nevada 89106

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you
are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ.
P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff’s attorney,
whose name and address are:  Peter Goldstein, Esq.

PETER GOLSTEIN LAW CORP
10161 Park Run Drive, Suite 150
Las Vegas, Nevada 89145
Telephone: (702) 474-6400

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint.
You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

CLERK OF COURT

Date:

Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk
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AO 440 (Rev. 06/12) Summons in a Civil Action (Page 2)

Civil Action No.

PROOF OF SERVICE
(This section should not be filed with the court unless required by Fed. R. Civ. P. 4 (1))

This summons for (name of individual and title, if any)

was received by me on (date)

(O I personally served the summons on the individual at (place)

on (date) ; or

(3 I left the summons at the individual’s residence or usual place of abode with (name)
, a person of suitable age and discretion who resides there,

on (date) , and mailed a copy to the individual’s last known address; or

(3 I served the summons on (name of individual) , who is

designated by law to accept service of process on behalf of (name of organization)

on (date) ; or
(O I returned the summons unexecuted because ; or
(A Other (specify):
My fees are $ for travel and $ for services, for a total of $ 0.00

I declare under penalty of perjury that this information is true.

Date:
Server’s signature

Printed name and title

Server’s address

Additional information regarding attempted service, etc:
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AO 440 (Rev. 06/12) Summons in a Civil Action

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

for the
District of Nevada

ROCHELLE SCOTT, individually, and as co-special
administrator of the estate of ROY ANTHONY SCOTT;
and FREDRICK WAID, as co-special administrator of
the estate of ROY ANTHONY SCOTT

Plaintiff(s)

V. Civil Action No. 2:20-cv-1872

LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE
DEPARTMENT; KYLE SMITH, individually;
THEODORE HUNTSMAN, indvidually; and DOES
1-10, inclusive

Defendant(s)

N N N N N N N N N N N N

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

To: (Defendant’s name and address) KYLE SMITH, individually
c/o LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE DEPARTMENT
400 South Martin L. King Boulevard
Las Vegas, Nevada 89106

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you
are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ.
P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff’s attorney,
whose name and address are:  Peter Goldstein, Esq.

PETER GOLSTEIN LAW CORP
10161 Park Run Drive, Suite 150
Las Vegas, Nevada 89145
Telephone: (702) 474-6400

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint.
You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

CLERK OF COURT

Date:

Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk
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AO 440 (Rev. 06/12) Summons in a Civil Action (Page 2)

Civil Action No.

PROOF OF SERVICE
(This section should not be filed with the court unless required by Fed. R. Civ. P. 4 (1))

This summons for (name of individual and title, if any)

was received by me on (date)

(O I personally served the summons on the individual at (place)

on (date) ; or

(3 I left the summons at the individual’s residence or usual place of abode with (name)
, a person of suitable age and discretion who resides there,

on (date) , and mailed a copy to the individual’s last known address; or

(3 I served the summons on (name of individual) , who is

designated by law to accept service of process on behalf of (name of organization)

on (date) ; or
(O I returned the summons unexecuted because ; or
(A Other (specify):
My fees are $ for travel and $ for services, for a total of $ 0.00

I declare under penalty of perjury that this information is true.

Date:
Server’s signature

Printed name and title

Server’s address

Additional information regarding attempted service, etc:





